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State of Ohio . Office of Budget and Management
30 East Broad Street . Columbus, Ohio 43266-0411

December 14, 1993

TO ALL READERS OF THE OHIO COMPREHE F
REPORT, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1993

We are pleased to make available the Ohio Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993. The accompanying CAFR represents a detailed report on
the State's financial activities for fiscal year 1993 and was prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The State's general purpose financial statements presented in the CAFR have been audited by the
Auditor of State, Thomas E. Ferguson, and his report is presented within the CAFR. For 1993,
the Auditor of State issued an unqualified opinion, which means the State's financial position is
fairly presented in all material respects.

This year's CAFR contains some format changes due to the State's early implementation of the
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 14, "The
Financial Reporting Entity." A more detailed discussion on the State's financial reporting entity,
after applying the new reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, can be found in
NOTE 1 A. to the financial statements.

In early fiscal year 1993, the State was awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) for its 1992 CAFR. As more fully explairied in my letter in the introductory
section, the State's 1992 CAFR was judged as meeting GFOA's rigorous program standards for
financial reporting.

We hope you will find Ohio's 1993 CAFR informative.
Sincerely,

E 7[{,,7,17 ﬁqﬂ,ﬂﬁ_

R. GREGORY BROWNING
Director
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State of Ohio - Office of Budget and Management
30 East Broad Street- Columbus, Ohio 43266-0411

November 18, 1993
To the Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly, and the Citizens of Ohio:

It is my privilege to issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the financial
condition of the State of Ohio for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1993. The report is prepared in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

This report was prepared by the Ohio Office of Budget and Management pursuant to Section 126.21 of
the Ohio Revised Code, which requires that an official financial report of the State be issued annually.
The report includes General Purpose Financial Statements, which provide an overview of the State's
financial position and the results of financial operations by fund type.

The Office of Budget and Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data presented and the
completeness and fairess of its presentation, including all disclosures. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups
of the State of Ohio. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
State's financial activities have been included.

The State's General Purpose Financial Statements include all funds and account groups that comprise the
State's legal entity or primary government. The State's reporting entity is also comprised of its
component units for which the elected officials of the State's primary government are financially
accountable. We followed the newly adopted criteria of GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial
Reporting Entity," to determine the organizations for which the State is financially accountable. NOTE
1 A. to the financial statements explains more fully which financial activities are included in and which
are excluded from the State's reporting entity.

The CAFR includes the following: introductory information; financial information that presents the
General Purpose Financial Statements, combining financial statements, supporting schedules, and fund
descriptions; and a statistical section that presents financial, economic, and demographic data for Ohio.

FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

The data in the financial statements are presented in accordance with a fund classification system
prescribed by the GASB. The purpose of this system is to improve the comparability of the financial
reports of different governmental units. Funds reported for the State's primary government and its
component units are classified into four categories: governmental, proprietary, fiduciary, and college
and university. Each category reported for the primary government is divided into several "fund types."

Governmental fund types are those through which State functions are financed. Governmental fund
types include the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds.

Proprietary fund types account for activities that are commercial in nature — similar to those often
found in the private sector. Proprietary fund types include the enterprise and internal service funds.



Fiduciary fund types include trust funds, which account for assets held by the primary government in a
trustee capacity, and agency funds, which account for assets held by the primary government as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.

The reporting format for our CAFR is significantly different from the way the State more typically
presents its finances on a budgetary basis. The most obvious difference is that the "General Fund" in the
CAFR includes more than just the State's General Revenue Fund. The General Fund also includes other
funds such as the reimbursement-supported funds used for activities administered by State agencies and
departments for which special revenue or proprietary fund classifications were considered to be
inappropriate. Furthermore, the majority of budgetary expenditures reported in the General Revenue
Fund for the support of higher education have been reclassified on a GAAP basis to "operating transfers
to component units," as required by the new reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, which
has been early implemented by the State for fiscal year 1993.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT RESULTS
The General Purpose Financial Statements have been audited by the Office of the Auditor of State,
Thomas E. Ferguson. The outcome of the audit conducted by the Auditor of State, in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards, was an unqualified auditor's report. Such an opinion indicates
there was no limitation on the scope of the auditor's examination and the financial statements were
prepared in conformity with GAAP.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

The State's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the State's assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the
cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

In fiscal year 1992, an executive order initiated the Internal Accounting Control Program (IACP). The
IACP establishes written guidelines for state agencies to follow during periodic management reviews of
their accounting operations. Under the program, agencies are required to formally establish, maintain,
and annually evaluate and report on internal accounting controls. :

The State's Central Accounting System (CAS) achieves budgetary control over the various accounts of
the State's funds. Ohio's bicameral legislature, the General Assembly, authorizes expenditures by
appropriating funds in biennial and supplemental appropriation acts. The Office of Budget and
Management uses CAS to control subsequent departmental obligation and expenditure activity to ensure
that authorized appropriations are not exceeded.

The State's budgetary financial statements are prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting. This
means that revenues are recognized when cash is received and expenditures are recognized when cash is
paid. Encumbrances, reservations of appropriation authority, as of June 30, the end of the State fiscal
year, are reflected as expenditures on the budgetary basis of accounting.

The State's GAAP financial statements for the governmental and expendable trust funds have been
prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting. This means that revenues are recognized when
measurable and available; expenditures are recognized when goods or services are received or liabilities
are incurred. The proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of



accounting. This means that revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Additional discussion of the budgetary and GAAP bases of accounting is provided in NOTE 1
to the financial statements.

CAS maintains all budgetary-basis transactions and most GAAP-basis adjustments. In addition to the
information obtained from the CAS for financial reporting, selected financial information provided by
the State's agencies and departments is compiled to complete the GAAP-basis financial statements.

Differences between the two bases of accounting (GAAP vs. budgetary) include: (1) entity differences
— the GAAP reporting entity may include organizations such as financing authorities and other
component units that are not included in the State's budget; (2) basis differences — the GAAP basis
results in the reporting of accruals while the budgetary basis results in the reporting of cash transactions;
and (3) timing differences — for example, GAAP recognizes expenditures for payables for goods and
services received, whereas the budgetary basis considers unliquidated encumbrances as expenditures. A
reconciliation between the GAAP-basis and budgetary-basis financial statements is presented in NOTE 3
to the financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

In Ohio, with the exception of certain organizations within the State's reporting entity that have
independent powers to manage and invest their funds, the Treasurer of State is responsible for investing
the State's cash pool. During fiscal year 1993, cash management and investment transactions made by
the Treasurer of State's Office, in accordance with the Uniform Depository Act, were limited to checking
accounts and certificates of deposit with qualified public depositories, U.S. government and agency
obligations, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, and security lending agreements. For fiscal year
1993, investment earnings on the State's cash pool managed by the Treasurer of State, including the
portion dedicated to the Ohio Lottery Commission, totaled approximately $226 million.

Quarterly, the Office of Budget and Management allocates the interest income earned on the undedicated
portion of the cash pool to the various funds designated by law to receive the earnings. The allocation is
calculated in accordance with a formula based on average daily cash balances invested over the quarter.

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS

The following schedule presents a summary of revenues, recorded on the modified accrual basis, for the
governmental fund types (General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1993, and the amount and percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior-
year's restated revenues (in thousands).

Increase/ Percentage
FY 1993 Percent (Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
Revenues Amount of Total from FY 1992 from FY 1992
INCOME TAXES......ovcereerererererrsereeeeerssresireeren $ 4,732,247 23.8% $ 323,412 7.3%
Sales TaXeS .........c.cuvvvcevcirereeeeeeesesreseenns 4,001,398 20.1 261,822 7.0
Corporate and Pubilic Utility Taxes ................ 1,500,475 7.5 106,947 7.7
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes............ccoeeervunn... 1,189,184 6.0 28,779 2.5
Other TaxXes ............cccouvvivrereeereeresesssesenenns 750,120 3.8 76,648 11.4
Licenses, Permits and Fees........................... 623,980 31 (16,016) (2.5)
Sales, Services and Charges ....................... 57,831 0.3 13,642 30.9
Federal Government..............cooueevveveeerereenn, 6,376,312 321 529,114 9.0
OtNeI ...t es e vesre s 649,360 3.3 (7,025) (1.1)
Total......coeevieeeeeeeereeei $19,880,907 100.0% $1,317,323 7.1

The increases for the State's major revenue sources are explained as follows:

* The 7.3 and 7.7 percent increases in income taxes and corporate and public utility taxes, respectively,
resulted mostly from a natural growth in Ohio's economy. A part of the growth in personal income




taxes, however, could be attributed to personal income shifting from 1993 to 1992 in anticipation of
higher tax rates resulting from the enactment of the Federal Budget Reconciliation Act.

e The 7.0 percent increase in sales tax revenue was largely due to a recent broadening of the sales tax
base to include certain services sold in Ohio and to an elimination of a tax exemption for certain
items used in making retail sales. Also, like income and corporate and public utility taxes, growth in
the State's economy contributed, in part, to the $261.8 million increase in fiscal year 1993,

e The 11.4 percent increase in other tax revenue is principally due to the following: an expansion of
the cigarette tax base to include other tobacco products, the enactment of an excise tax on soft drinks,
and increases in the alcoholic beverage and cigarette tax rates.

e The $529.1 million or 9.0 percent increase in federal government revenue, which represents 32.1
percent of total governmental revenues, came about primarily because of a significant increase in the
Medicaid Program, under which approximately 60 percent of eligible costs paid by the State are
reimbursed by the federal government.

Expenditures for governmental fund types, presented on the modified accrual basis, for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1993, and the amount and percentage increases and decreases in relation to prior-year's
restated expenditures are shown below for the functions of general government (in thousands).

Increase/ Percentage
FY 1993 Percent (Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
Expenditures Amount of Total from FY 1992 from FY 1992
Current:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ................... $ 4,497,568 22.4% $301,648 7.2%
Higher Education Support .............c.coceevvreeeeevnrrrnn. 316,689 1.5 (11,185) (3.4)
Public Assistance and Medicaid...................ccovnoen.... 6,774,178 33.8 599,345 9.7
Health and Human Services............oovvveveveevenevessenns 1,854,715 9.3 130,855 7.6
Justice and Public Protection ..............ccoeereveverrnnnne.. 1,060,778 53 90,125 9.3
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources ....... 223,304 1.1 (2,980) (1.3)
Transportation.............cceeeeirineenevesiereesens s s seanns 1,293,349 6.5 (79,536) (5.8)
General GOVEINMENt.............cc.c.cuveeivvieerererrerereeeonn. 335,470 1.7 (576) (0.2)
Community and Economic Development..................... 284,061 1.4 (17,331) (5.8)
INtergovernMental ..................e.eeeeeieeeneneereeeneeesseeseness 1,983,308 9.9 (94,161) (4.5)
Capital QUHAY.............ccoueviereriiriiectieceeeevereses e eeeeee 739,463 37 14,640 2.0
Debt Service...........covueeeeiceeeeeeeetee e e 681,207 3.4 (83,087) (10.9)
Total sttt o L e TN Y $20,044,090 100.0% $847,757 4.4

The increases and decreases for the State's major categories of expenditures are explained as follows:

o Primary, secondary and other education expenditures increased by $301.6 million or 7.2 percent in
fiscal year 1993. This increase largely resulted from increases in spending at the Department of
Education for the School Foundation Basic Allowance Program. Increased spending in other
programs administered by the Department such as special education, vocational education, auxiliary
services, and disadvantaged pupil impact aid also contributed to the increase.

» Public assistance and Medicaid expenditures increased by $599.3 million or 9.7 percent. Increases
in the Medicaid Program comprise the largest portion of the public assistance and Medicaid
expenditure increase.

* Health and human services expenditures increased by $130.9 million or 7.6 percent due to increased
spending primarily at the Departments of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Developmental
Disabilities, Health, Aging, and Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services, and the Rehabilitation
Services Commission.

» Justice and public protection expenditures grew by $90.1 million or 9.3 percent. More than half of
this increase resulted from increased spending at the Department of Rehabilitation and Correction
while the remainder is reflective of overall spending increases at various agencies included in this
expenditure function.



o Transportation expenditures shrunk by $79.5 million or 5.8 percent due to decreased spending for
operating costs at the Department of Transportation.

An additional analysis of revenues and expenditures for all governmental funds reported for fiscal year
1993 is shown in the graphic presentation that follows this letter.

GENERAL FUND

Many State programs are accounted for in the General Fund. The General Fund reported an
unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $199.3 million, as of June 30, 1993, compared to $29.1 million
(as restated), as of June 30, 1992. Revenues for the General Fund increased by 7.8 percent to $13.8
billion in fiscal year 1993 from $12.8 billion in fiscal year 1992. Expenditures for the General Fund
increased by 5.2 percent to $12.1 billion in fiscal year 1993 from $11.5 billion in fiscal year 1992.

PROPRIETARY AND FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The State's enterprise funds reported a retained earnings deficit of $3.22 billion, as of June 30, 1993, as
compared to $3.49 billion (as restated), as of June 30, 1992, a 7.7 percent decrease. These results were
caused primarily by the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund, which reported a retained earnings
deficit of $3.36 billion, as of June 30, 1993, as compared to $3.56 billion, as of June 30, 1992, a 5.6
percent decrease. Operating revenues for the enterprise funds increased to $5.98 billion in fiscal year
1993 from $5.15 billion in fiscal year 1992. Management at the Bureau of Workers' Compensation
believes improvement in the enterprise fund's financial condition can be achieved through programs
aimed at controlling indemnity and medical claim costs.

The State's internal service funds reported retained earnings of $109.1 million, as of June 30, 1993, as
compared to $98.8 million (as restated), as of June 30, 1992, a 10.4 percent increase. Operating
revenues for the internal service funds increased to $255.1 million in fiscal year 1992 from $252.5
million in fiscal year 1992; operating expenses increased to $244.9 million in fiscal year 1993 from
$218.8 million in fiscal year 1992.

The fund balance of the expendable trust fund increased by 21.5 percent to $934.9 million, as of June 30,
1993, from $769.4 million, as of June 30, 1992. Revenues for the expendable trust fund increased by
23.5 percent to $1.47 billion in fiscal year 1993 from $1.19 billion in fiscal year 1992 while
expenditures decreased 1.5 percent to $1.3 billion in fiscal year 1993 from $1.32 billion in 1992.

The fund balance of the pension trust fund was approximately $264 million, as of June 30, 1993, as
compared to $239.5 million, as of June 30, 1992, a 10.2 percent increase. Operating revenues for the
pension trust fund increased to $37.1 million in fiscal year 1993 from $32.3 million in fiscal year 1992;
operating expenses increased to $12.6 million in fiscal year 1993 from $10.9 million in fiscal year 1992.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Ohio's credit ratings by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's) and Standard & Poor's Corporation
(S&P) for certain State general obligation bonds are Aa and AA, respectively, except that S&P rates the
State's Highway Obligations AAA. In October 1993, Moody's raised its rating from A to Al on those
obligations supported by the General Revenue Fund that are issued by the Ohio Building Authority and
the Ohio Public Facilities Commission. Unenhanced debt of the two state authorities is generally rated
A+ by S&P.

As of June 30, 1993, the State's primary government reported a total of $4.7 billion in outstanding debt
issues in its General Long-Term Obligations Account Group as follows (in thousands):
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Percentage

Outstanding Increase/(Decrease)
Balance Since June 30, 1992
General Obligation Bonds..........cccccecvenievenerennverineniinenens $ 837417 12.2%
ReVENUS BONAS ......c.ooeeeeevniiniiiiitiiersessees e ensens 110,320 (13.5)
Special Obligation Bonds...........c.ceceinenrenerinnicereneennes 3,821,014 8.7
TR rorocoemonoooomoonpraraixonocopt oo et $4,768,751 8.7

Ohio's primary government also reported $49.9 million in revenue bonds outstanding (net of
unamortized discounts of $4.1 million), as of June 30, 1993, for the proprietary funds.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

State employees may be eligible to participate in the Public Employees Retirement System, the State
Teachers Retirement System, or the State Highway Patrol Retirement System. Further information on
the State's participation in the retirement systems can be found in NOTE 9 to the financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

As discussed in NOTE 1 O. to the financial statements, the State is self-insured for claims arising from
the State's traditional health care plan, workers' compensation, vehicle liability, public fidelity blanket
bonds, property losses, and tort liability.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The national economy is in a period of slow and moderate growth that may extend into 1994 and
beyond. Real Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew at a revised annual rate of 1.9 percent in the second
quarter of 1993, following a revised 0.8 percent growth rate in the first quarter of the year. For the first
six months of 1993, real GDP has grown at a scant 1.4 percent annual rate after a pace of more than 4.6
percent in the second half of 1992. Current economic evidence, however, indicates that the second half
of 1993 will be stronger with real GDP growth in the range of 2.5 to 3.0 percent in the third and fourth
quarters. The outlook for 1994 is not expected to change significantly. The consensus forecast calls for
economic growth to continue close to the 3.0 percent level in 1994 and 1995.

The modest nature of the current economic recovery, which started in 1991, was unprecedented in post-
war U.S. history. Growth rates in economic activity that followed the 1990 recession pale in comparison
to the pick up that took place during the recovery period following the last major recession. The revised
GDP data show that the current recovery has been on a 2.5 percent growth path for the last two years
with no signs that it will move into a higher gear in the near future. It appears that the economy is
unable to recover with anything like its usual spirit. After every previous recession the economy has
bounced back strongly, although sometimes only briefly. However, with many markets forecast to grow
in 1994 similar to those in 1993, the current recovery will remain a half-speed, vulnerable expansion
relative to post-war standards.

In the short term, corporate restrictions and defense downsizing will continue to be a drag on the
economy. The good news in the economic picture is that modest growth will keep inflation and interest
rates low, especially with the federal deficit likely to shrink more than earlier expectations.

National economic conditions will have an impact on Ohio's economic growth and fiscal condition. The
national recession of 1990 brought heavy job losses and slow income growth to the State. Ohio's heavy
industries slid as demand for capital goods declined throughout the nation. However, in previous
recessions, the Ohio economy has been hit much harder. This was due mainly to Ohio's dependence
upon manufacturing, which usually suffers heavily in an economic downturn. The 1990 recession,
however, was different in character. The drop in economic activity was not solely concentrated in the
industrial sector but instead the impact was distributed to other sectors of the economy.



Since 1983, Ohio's heavy industry and manufacturing concerns have revitalized plant and equipment,
which have contributed to improvement in productivity, production capacity, and competitiveness.
These developments have provided Ohio with a more diversified and solid economic base. In addition,
Ohio's near-term growth will rely in part on its role as a financial and service center. The finance,
insurance, and real estate sector has been one of Ohio's greatest strengths recently, adding more than
16,000 jobs over the last five years.

The Voinovich Administration has consistently resolved budget problems by first reducing spending.
Ohio has had four rounds of budget cuts totaling over $700 million since January 1991. Tax increases
during this period have been limited and narrow in focus. The result has been about $2 in budget cuts
for every $1 in tax increases for fiscal years 1991 through 1993. According to the Fiscal Survey of
States, prepared by the National Governors' Association, for fiscal year 1993, Ohio had the largest
budget cuts and the third largest tax increases among the 50 states. The tax ranking is directly related to
an anemic economy and dramatically escalating costs of unfunded mandates to provide health care for
low-income Ohioans.

As a result of slow and moderate economic conditions and budget stability, the General Revenue Fund is
projected to end fiscal year 1994 with a modest $113.7 million unobligated budgetary fund balance.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND PROJECTS
o In January 1993, the Job Creation Act was effected to provide tax credits to businesses for job
creation in the areas of research and development, export expansion, and equipment investment. The
legislation is now serving as a model for other states as it has been recognized as providing
businesses and communities with the flexibility necessary to capitalize upon new markets.

o With the enactment of Am. Sub. House Bill 152 in July 1993, the Ohio Economic and Tax
Structure Study Commission was created to undertake an in-depth review of Ohio's system of
raising tax revenues for government services. The Commission will focus on Ohio's tax structure
and its relationship to the State's economy. The study, the first comprehensive effort in this area in
25 years, will also examine ways to make Ohio's tax structure more attractive to businesses.

o Access Ohio, the Ohio Department of Transportation's recently completed long-range transportation
plan, addresses such concerns as traffic congestion, vehicular capacity, energy consumption and
clean air standards. The plan also proposes ways to better integrate Ohio's transportation modes,
including roadways, airports, waterways, and public transportation. Access Ohio, a nationally
recognized effort, was written after extensive public consultation, including 71 town hall meetings.

o On November 2, 1993, Ohio voters approved Issue 1, which authorizes the State of Ohio through
constitutional amendment to sell up to $200 million in general obligation bonds to finance
improvements at Ohio's parks and natural areas.

DEPARTMENTAL FOCUS
Each year an agency is selected to be highlighted for its efforts and accomplishments. The Ohio
Tuition Trust Authority (OTTA) has been selected for 1993.

In November 1989, OTTA began its operations to design, promote, and operate college savings
programs that help children, who are Ohio residents, afford higher education. OTTA offers two savings
programs — the Prepaid Tuition Program and the College Savings Bond Program.

1"



Under the Prepaid Tuition Program, participants can purchase tuition credits, up to a maximum of 400.
Each tuition credit entitles a student to an amount equal to one percent of tuition costs, including
mandatory fees, charged for a full-time student during an academic year at the 13 four-year, State
universities in Ohio. The price of a tuition credit is recomputed each year to cover OTTA's projected
administrative costs and to ensure the program's actuarial soundness and financial stability. The current
price of a tuition credit is less than $50, and various tuition credit purchasing packages are available to
assist program participants in reaching their savings goals. Tuition credits can be applied to any
accredited college or university.

Under the College Savings Bond Program, OTTA has been authorized by law to work with various state
financing authorities, such as the Treasurer of State's Office, to designate the State's tax-exempt bond
issuances as College Savings Bonds. While OTTA does not issue any college savings bonds, it
promotes their availability from Ohio's financing authorities. Program participants can purchase the
zero-coupon or capital appreciation bonds from brokerage firms and banks. At maturity, the principal
and tax-free interest paid on the bonds can be used by program participants to pay tuition and other
expenses. Typically, Ohio College Savings Bonds have had a face value of $5,000 at maturity, with
maturities ranging from eight to 20 years.

As of June 30, 1993, OTTA has sold approximately 2.3 million tuition credits since its inception, of
which 784 thousand credits were sold in fiscal year 1993 alone, and close to $70 million in College
Savings Bonds hav ¢ been made available for purchase by program participants. During fiscal year 1993,
program assets had grown to almost $93 million, which is an increase of approximately $40 million or
73 percent over fiscal year 1992,

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of Ohio for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992. The
Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local
government financial reporting.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized CAFR whose contents conform to program standards. The CAFR must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it
to GFOA.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staffs of the various State agencies whose time
and dedicated efforts made this report possible.

Sincerely,

R. GREGORY BROWNING
Director



Revenues for All Governmental Funds
State Fiscal Year 1993
{millions of dollars)

Other
$649 3.3%

Income Taxes

Federal Government $4,732 23.8%

$6,376 32.1%

Sales, Services
o Charg/e 3 Sales Taxes
$58 .3% \ / S
Licenses, Permits and Fees
$624 3.1% Other Taxes

$750 3.8%
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes Corporate and Public Utility Taxes
$1,189 6.0% $1,500 7.5%

Expenditures for All Governmental Funds

State Fiscal Year 1993
{millions of dollars)

Debt Service
Capital Outlay 681 3.4%
Intergovernmental $739 3.7%

$1,983 9.9% Primary, Secondary
and Other Education
$4,498 22.4%
Higher Education
/ Support *

Community and
$317 1.5%

Economic Development

$284 1.4% \

General Government
$335 1.7%

Transportation

$1,293 6.5%

Environmental Protection /
and Natural Resources —

$223 1.1%

Justice and Public Protection
$1,061 5.3%

Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and Human Services $6,774 33.8%

$1.855 9.3%

* Budgetary expenditures for higher education support reported for the governmental funds have been reclassified on a GAAP basis to
"operating transfers to component units," as required by the new reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial
Reporting Entity.”
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

State of
Ohio

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1992

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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President

Y o
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THOMAS E. FERGUSON, CFE
 ADITOR OF STATE
P.O. BOX 1140 @ Tolumbus, Ohlo 432660040 e [614] 4664514

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable George V. Voinovich, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio, as
of and for the year ended June 30, 1993, as listed in the table of contents. These general purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the State's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the following organizations:

Ohio Housing Finance Agency Ohio Building Authority

Economic Development Financing Division Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation
Minority Development Financing Commission and Industrial Commission of Ohio
Ohio Public Facilities Commission State Highway Patrol Retirement System

Also, we did not audit the following discretely presented component units:

Ohio Water Development Authority University of Akron

State Parking Commission University of Cincinnati g
Cleveland State University University of Toledo

Kent State University Wright State University

Miami University Youngstown State University ]
Ohio State University Medical College of Ohio at Toledo

Ohio University

o

In addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the following retirement systems whose
assets held by the Treasurer of State are included as part of the State's agency fund type: the ]
Public Employees Retirement System and the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund '
System. These statements reflect the following percent of total assets or liabilities and revenues
of the indicated fund type, account groups and discretely presented component units: 3

—

Percent of Total Percent of Total
Assets/(Liabilities) Revenues
Special Revenue Fund Type 16% 0%
Debt Seryice Fund Type 77% 16%
Capital Projects Fund Type 17% 10%
Enterprise Fund Type 90% 59%
Internal Service Fund Type 34% 10%
Trust and Agency Fund Type 48% 2%
General Fixed Assets Account Group 11% -een
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (76%) -
Discretely Presented Component Units 93% 93%

17
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The Honorable George V. Voinovich, Governor

The financial statements of these independently audited organizations and the assets of the
retirement systems were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts of these independently audited organizations and
funds included in the fund types and account groups comprising the general purpose financial
statements is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general
purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial
statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the State of Ohio at June 30, 1993, and the results of its operations and the cash flows
of its enterprise and internal service fund types and its component unit proprietary funds for the
year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the
table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the general purpose financial statements of the State of Ohio. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general
purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not examine the data included in the statistical section of this report and therefore,

express no opinion thereon.

Auditor of State

November 16, 1993






STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

JUNE 30, 1993
(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . .. . . ..« v iie i
(&) (0 (REILY] "agiio B 006 b BB G0 G Bhow0 0 G iososd%d o Beo.Onies b B0 B
Cash with Custodian . . . . ... ... ... i
Investments
Deposit with Federal Government
Receivables:
VTS o g-Slamoscra B d, D BichaRrty DRats kit o M- - o
Intergovernmental . . . . ... .. .. ... ... e
Premiums and Assessments. . . . .. .. ... . e
OGETEY DG 6608 08 brgup 00 61040 008 d 0 0 pio o 4 G'aoNs oif -0 I
Ot S =S . LT | = Craars st e
Due from Other Funds. . . .. . . . . i i it i it i it e e
U & 64 0 B0 B OB G & ows. b 6 IMBE G5 O B0 0 G G0 0.0 0
Deposit with Deferred Compensation Plan . .
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer . . . . ... .. ... ... .
Cashwith Custodlan . . . .. ........ ... .. . . oo,
(OIS0 © o6 b6 0 b art ano OO Boo oo B G o 010 ore0r o oo oo

Amount Available in:
Debt Service Fund . . .. ....... ... . i
Capital Projects Fund. . . . . ... ..... ... ...
Amount to be Provided for the Retirement
of General Long-Term Qbligations . . . . .. ................

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS . . .. ........ ...

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabiltties:

Accounts Payable. . . . . ... ... ... .. ..t

Medicald Claims Payable . ... .......... ... iiiennn

Accrued Liabilities. . . . . .. .. ... .. .. e

Intergovernmental Payable. . . . ... ... ............ . ......

DuetoOther Funds . . . ... ... .. .. iiinennenn

Deferred Revenues . . . . . .. ............. R R

Workers' Compensation Benefits Payable. . . . .. ..............

Refund and Other Liabilities. . . . . ... ............c.c......

Liability for Deferred Compensatlon . ... ...................

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets. . . . ... .............

General Obligation Bonds . . . . .. . ... ... ¢ uuiiniennnenenn

Revenue Bonds and Notes . . . .. . ... .......uuiiueieneens

Special QObligation Bonds

Ceortificates of Participation . . ... ... ..........ccvvveunen.

Other General Long-Term Obligations . . . . .. ................

Total Liabllities. . . . . . . .o .o e
Fund Equity and Other Credits:

Investment in General Fixed Assels . . . . ... .. .. .......cv...

Contributed Capital . . . . . ... . .. e e

Net Unrealized Gains on Investments . . . ... ................

Retained Earnings:

Reserved . . . . .. ... ... v i
Unreserved (Deficlts) . . . . . .. ... ... it innan
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Debt Service . . .. ............... ..
Encumbrances . . . . . . .. . e e

Noncurrent Portion of Loans Receivable. . . . . . . . ...........

Pension and Health Care Benefits . . . .. ... . ....

Restricted Fund Balances . . . ... ... .

Other . ... ..o v i
Unreserved/Designated. . . . . . .. ... ..........cvu....
Unreserved/Undesignated (Deficits). .

Total Fund Equlty (Deficits)

and Other Credits. . . . . . ile o o N SR
TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY
AND OTHER CREDITS . . . . ... . .. .... ... ........

The notes to the financlal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
$ 497,836 $ 1,101,004 $ 127,140 § 367,659

—_— 13,370 — =

2,437 4,707 4,946 640

242 87,262 436,998 80,319

712,645 204,740 o —

368,200 210,899 — =

1,723 296,849 = 19,319

6,222 18,358 9,228 1,109

5,670 15,545 436 1,746

5,565 34,848 — =

1,865 3,581 —_ —

$ 1,602,405 $ 1,991,163 § 576,748 $§ 470,792
$ 64,081 $ 189,056 § - § 46,112
505,691 _— == —_—

63,071 46,253 1,127 27

154,212 326,287 = 7,952

27,912 9,727 — 2,330

868 36,715 664 —

360,370 94,607 3,099 ==
1,176,205 702,645 3,890 56,421

— —_— 573,858 5,690

196,587 1,480,465 = 457,817

1,619 207,316 —— 18,972

28,733 40,667 —_— 62,312

199,261 (439,930) — (130,420)
426,200 1,288,518 573,858 414,371

$ 1,602,405 $ 1,991,163 § 578,748 $ 470,792




PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE ACCOUNT GROUPS
TOTAL TOTAL
GENERAL GENERAL PRIMARY REPORTING
INTERNAL TRUST AND FIXED LONG-TERM GOVERNMENT COMPONENT ENTITY

ENTERPRISE SERVICE AGENCY ASSETS OBLIGATIONS (memorandum only) UNITS (memorandum only)
$ 91,537 § 30274 § 186,509 $ — "Wl - 2,401,959 § 112 § 2,402,071
— e — = — 13,370 2,550 15,920
4,204 219 94,164 — = 111,317 158,407 269,724
9,766,058 1,825 61,073,958 — e 71,446,662 1,698,626 73,145,268
= — 779,593 — = 779,593 — 779,593
= = 216,399 — e 1,133,784 — 1,133,784
— 1,328 616 — — 581,043 45,032 626,075
2,299,821 — — == = 2,299,821 = 2,299,821
— — 35,190 — = 353,081 1,174,878 1,527,959
168,684 53,223 28,885 = — 285,709 259,409 545,118
104 35,963 3,143 — — 62,607 393,526 456,133
23,443 14,923 — — — 78,779 45,480 124,259
C— — 442,827 = = 442,827 832 443,659
20,330 = — = = 20,330 — 20,330
652 771 — = — 1,423 156,180 159,603
— 22,632 L — — 22,632 447,142 469,774
1,195,286 == — — — 1,195,286 = 1,195,286
10,626 = — — — 10,626 — 10,626
448,381 127,607 2,541 2,719,199 = 3,297,728 6,193,980 9,491,708
(117,522) (64,589) (40) — — (182,151) (5,021) (187,172)
107,373 465 4 = — 113,288 63,291 176,579
= - 316,230 — = 316,230 = 316,230
— — — = 573,858 573,858 — 573,858
—3 — — = 5,690 5,690 — 5,690
— L= — — 5,007,679 5,007,679 — 5,007,679
$ 14,018,977 $ 224641 § 63,180,019 $ 2,719,199 $ 5,587,227 $ 90,373,171 $ 10,636,424 $ 101,009,595
$ 30628 $ 12174 § . .184 § — § - § 342,435 $§ 152,446 $ 494,881
— — t— — —— 505,691 = 505,691
7.708 34,171 267 = S 152,624 462,767 615,391
394 5110 3,295,983 — -_ 3,789,938 = 3,789,938
1,564 1,144 29,000 — — 71,697 393,526 465,223
385,661 1,201 — — — 425,109 123,931 549,040
13,758,684 — = — =3 13,758,684 3 13,758,684
1,020,989 — 58,211,150 — = 59,690,215 75,678 59,765,893
— — 444,515 o= = 444,515 832 445,347
1,184,737 500 == = = 1,185,237 == 1,185,237
= = = — 837,417 837,417 T 837,417
2 49,891 = =— 110,320 160,211 1,801,748 1,961,959
= — = — 3,821,014 3,821,014 C— 3,821,014
— 6514 o= == 14,265 20,779 22,640 43,419
— — o - 804,211 804,211 — 804,211
16,390,585 110,705 61,981,099 — 5,587,227 86,009,777 3,033,568 89,043,345
= — = 2,719,199 F— 2,719,199 5,453,049 8,172,248
e 4,843 . o 3 4,843 108 4,951
845,032 . — = — 845,032 e 845,032
115,484 > -_ - b 115,484 - 115,484
(3,332,124) 109,093 = e — (3,223,031) 452,397 (2,770,634)
— e — e — 579,548 — 579,548
e o o = - 2,134,869 - 2,134,869
—_ — e o e 227,907 -_ 227,907
- e 263,973 e - 263,973 - 263,973
- - S — -_ e 1,099,296 1,099,296
—_ -_ e e - 131,712 - 131,712
- e - S - . 586,881 586,881
— _ 934,947 - -_ 563,858 11,125 574,983
(2,371,608) 113,936 1,198,920 2,719,199 = 4,363,394 7,602,856 11,966,250
$ 14,018,977 $ 2246841 § 63,180,019 $ 2,719,199 $ 5,587,227 $ 90,373,171 § 10,636,424 $ 101,009,595

21




20

STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1993

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES . . o v v v o e oo i
SaleS TAXES . .« « v v v v e e e
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes . . . . ............
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . . . .« .o v v v oo
Unemployment Taxes . . . . . .« c o v v v vv o ov o
Other TAXES . « v v v v e oo et e e e e et et ee e
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . . ... ... ... .. ... ..
Sales, Services and Charges . . . . .. .. ... ..o
Federal Government. . . . . . . o o oo v v v v i et

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . . .........
Higher Education Support. . . . ... .. ..ot
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . . ... ... ... ....
Health and Human Services . . . . . . . .« c oo v v v oo v
Justice and Public Protection . . .. ... ......c......
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . .. ..
Transportation. . . . . . . . oo
General Government. . . . . .« .« o i e
Community and Economic Development . . . . .. .......

INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . . . .« o oot iieee e
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . . o o ot e e et e e e e ee e
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . .« o i i v it i et e e oo oo

TOTAL EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . . o« ottt ov oo

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . i v it e i ot oo oo e

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond and Cerificates of Participation Proceeds . . . ... ..
Refunding Bond Proceeds . . . ... ...............
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents. . . ........
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .. ... ..o
Operating Transfers-out . . . . . . ... ..o
Operating Transfers to Component Units. . . . .. .......

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES). . . ... .. ..
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES . . . . . . .« o i i e it i i iee e e
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) . . . . . . .. ... ... ..

INCREASE (DECREASE) FOR CHANGES IN INVENTORIES . . . . .

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30. . ................

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

SPECIAL DEBT
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE
$ 4270124 $ 462,123 § —
3,810,631 190,767 —
1,419,293 81,182 -
- 1,143,051 46,133
712,400 37,720 —
80,629 498,585 44,766
32,082 25,749 —
3,276,727 3,099,097 488
189,935 405,475 26,897
13,791,821 5,943,749 118,284
3,167,196 1,330,372 -
220,792 95,897 -
5,983,923 790,255 -
780,154 1,074,561 —
770,081 290,697 —
77,838 145,466 —
29,849 1,263,500 -
228,949 106,521 -
69,737 214272 -
741,099 1,242,209 —
5,524 68,632 —
2 — 681,030
12,075,144 6,622,382 681,030
1,716,677 (678,633) (562,746)
— - 1,486
— — 271,605
— - (277,526)
89,228 1,400,123 586,431
(554,393) (764,161) (31,163)
(1,154,002) — —
(1,619,167) 635,962 550,833
97,510 (42,671) (11,913)
327,261 1,333,283 585,771
1,429 (2,094) —
$ 426200 $ 1288518 § 573,858




FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

EXPENDABLE
TRUST

TOTAL
(memorandum
only)

27,053

1,405,997

64,001

$ 4732247
4,001,398
1,500,475
1,189,184
1,405,997
750,120
623,980

57,831
6,376,312
713,361

27,053

1,469,998

21,350,905

N

e R N o 2 I

665,307
175

1,304,

H
-

4,497,568
316,689
6,774,178
3,159,175
1,060,778
223,304
1,293,349
335,470
264,061

1,983,308
739,463
661,207

665,534

1,304,460

21,348,550

(638,481)

165,538

2,355

750,958

231,151
(226,596)

752,444
271,605
(277,526)
2,306,933
(1,576,313)
(1,154,002)

755,513

323,141

117,032
297,339

165,538
769,409

325,496
3,313,063
(665)

$ 414,371

$ 934047

$ 3637894
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1993

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES . . v o oo v e e e
S RloGRIaxes it b P R e B
Corporate and Public Utility TAXES . . o o v o e
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes . . .. ... ... ... "
Other TAXES . .+ v o e o o e oo m e s
Licenses, Permits and Fees . . . .. .. ...
Sales, Services and Charges . . . ... ... - "~
Federal Government. . . . . . . .« o« oo e e

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education . . .. ... ..
Higher Education SUpport. . . . . ...... .«
Public Assistance and Medicaid . . . . . .. .. ..o
Health and Human Services . . . . . .. .. ..
Justice and Public Protection . . . . . ... ...
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources . . . . . .
Transportation. . . . . .« oo oo
General Government. . . . . . . .. e
Community and Economic Development . . . . ... ...
INTERGOVERNMENTAL . . . . . . .« oo o mvmmm e
CAPITAL OUTLAY . . . . .« o oo e
DEBT SERVICE. . . . . . . . . o« o v oo v o

TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . . . . . . . .- - -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES . .. .. ... ..

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond Proceeds. . . . v oo oc e
Operating Transfers-in. . . . .« .. «cocooe s e
Operating Transfers-out . . . . .. ...«
Encumbrance Reversions . . . . ...« ..o

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) . . . . .. ..

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES. . . . . . - .« c«coovme o

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY 1 . . . . o oo

UNRESERVED, UNDESIGNATED BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30 . « . . . . .o vooeemme o

GENERAL FUND

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
§ 4176500 § 4226587 § 50,087
3,819,200 3,773,703 (45,497)
1,439,000 1,416,721 (22,279)
700,900 707,263 6,363
89,208 87,611 (1,597)
46,037 46,389 352
3,228,667 3,286,378 57,711
303,374 300,985 (2,389)
13,802,886 13,845,637 42,751
3,190,386 3,187,839 2,547
1,379,241 1,376,400 2,841
6,056,660 5,957,100 99,580
826,063 810,035 16,028
808,554 793,569 14,985
95,869 92,146 3,723
32,571 32,566 5
342,736 315,119 27,617
86,994 86,321 673
772,816 741,845 30,971
21,611 1,664 19,947
615,751 540,284 75,467
14,229,272 13,934,888 294,384
(426,386) (89,251) 337,135
81,931 101,093 19,162
(17,730) (25,528) (7.798)
— 36,049 36,049
64,201 111,614 47,413
(362,185) 22,363 384,548
160,428 160,428 —
s (201757 §__ 182791 § _ 364548



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

il IR ARt e

VARIANCE

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

—————————— e e e ——
VARIANCE

FAVORABLE FAVORABLE

BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE) BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFA VORABLE)
§ 495076 § 495076 § = e -  § =TS -
197,038 197,038 — - — =
85,120 85,120 — - - -
1,128,071 1,128,071 - 46,134 46,134 -
37,724 37,724 - - - —
657,637 657,637 — 44,784 44,784 -
17,229 17,229 — — — -
3,302,677 3,302,677 — — — -
508,796 508,796 — 75,168 75,168 —
6,429,368 6,429,368 — 166,086 166,086 —
1,380,366 1,373,778 6,588 - - —
30,146 28,859 1,287 — — -
1,321,662 1,221,122 100,540 — — —
1,199,332 1,095,456 103,876 - - -
341,061 299,893 41,168 - — —
182,837 152,023 30,814 — — —
1,763,519 1,447,660 315,859 - — —
122,922 108,033 14,889 - — —
418,937 348,979 69,958 - — —
1,581,786 1,449,055 132,731 - - -
213,023 65,374 147,649 - - -

10,100 5,000 5,100 186,945 173,214 13,731

8,565,691 7,595,232 970,459 186,945 173,214 13,731

(2,136,323) (1,165,864) 970,459 (20,859) (7,128) 13,731
— — — 805 805 —
1,363,674 1,363,674 — 10,462 10,462 —
(720,169) (720,169) — (10,462) (10,462) —
166,330 166,330 — — — —
809,835 809,835 — 805 805 —

$ (1,326,488 (356,029) § 970459 § (20,054) (6323 § 13,731

(172,926) 133,462
$ (528,955 $ 127,139
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES AND PENSION TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1993

(amounts expressed in thousands)

PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
INTERNAL PENSION
ENTERPRISE SERVICE TRUST
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and Services. . . . . ... .......... $ 2330579 § 247,864 & =
Premium and Assessment Income . ... ............ 2,301,070 — —
Investment Income. . . . ... . ... ... 1,300,647 — 19,391
Employer Contributions . . . . .. .. ....... . ... ... — = 12,312
Employee Contributions . . . . . . .. ... ..... ....... = = 5,268
Otherigr =1 A48 PRI SN se e T 1 L L T, 45,383 7,232 130
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. . . . . . . . ... ... ... 5,977,679 255,096 37,101
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services. . . . ... ... .......... 216,571 102,882 =
Administration. . . . . . . . o v i e e e e e 199,406 114,285 937
Bonuses and Commissions. . . . . . . . .« v i it e 119,457 — =
PriZesiel N . B A e . Nk L Lo 1,075,877 == —
Benefits and Claims . . . . . . . . . . . vt 3,171,890 —> 11,674
Depreciation S 8w el o L e 18,802 15,833 16
Other. .. T T e . 167,970 11,941 =
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES . . . . . . .. . ... .. .... 4,969,973 244,941 12,627
OPERATING INCOME . . .. . .. .. . uuueeuneno. 1,007,706 10,155 24,474
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income. . . . . . . . .. e ) 1,220 =
Interest Expense . . . . . .. ... ...t = (5,107) o
Federal Grants . . . . . . . . . . i i i it e = — -
Other R AR R s . -t .t T 114 (706) —
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES). . . . . . . . 114 (4,593) Ty
INCOME BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS . .. ....... ... 1,007,820 5,562 24,474
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating Transfers-in. . . . ... .. ............... ) 35,035 g
Operating Transfers-out. . . ... .. ... ............ (735,054) (30,353) —
TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... (735,054) 4,682 o
NET INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM. . . . ... ... .. 272,766 10,244 24,474
EXTRAORDINARY ITEM - LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT . — — —
NET INCOME (LOSS) . . . . . o oo i e e e e e e e 272,766 10,244 24,474
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS)/
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (as restated) . . . .. ... ... .. (3,489,406) 98,849 239,499
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICITS)/
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30 . . .. .......... $ (32166400 $ 109,093 § 263,973

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOTAL

TOTAL

PRIMARY PROPRIETARY REPORTING
GOVERNMENT __FUND TYPES _ ENTITY
(memorandum COMPONENT (memorandum

only) UNITS only)
$§ 2578443 $ 77,711 $ 2656154
2,301,070 = 2,301,070
1,320,038 15,205 1,335,243
12,312 — 12,312
5,268 — 5,268
52,745 655 53,400
6,269,876 93,571 6,363,447
319,453 62,946 382,399
314,628 338 314,966
119,457 — 119,457
1,075,877 - 1,075,877
3,183,564 — 3,183,564
34,651 449 35,100
179,911 4,370 184,281
5,227,541 68,103 5,295,644
1,042,335 25,468 1,067,803
1,220 203 1,423
(5,107) (196) (5,303)
= 32,165 32,165
(592) 4 (588)
(4,479) 32,176 27,697
1,037,856 57,644 1,095,500
35,035 —5 35,035
(765,407) “— (765,407)
(730,372) — (730,372)
307,484 57,644 365,128
— (80,187) (80,187)
307,484 (22,543) 284,941
(3,151,058) 474,940 (2,676,118)
$ (28435740 $ 452,397 $_(2,391,177)
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STATE OF OHIO

COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1993

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS :
Unrestricted Current Fund Revenues. |,
Local Appropriations-Restricted . . . 0 B0 BN RE
Federal Grants and Contracts-Restricted . . . . ».

Local Grants and Contracts-Restricted . . . . . 5 bl o
Private Gifts, Grants, and Contracts-Restricled . . . . Y.

Endowment Incorne-Restricted. . . .
Investment Income-Restricted e g

Interest on Loans Receivable . . . .
Investment in Plant-Additions . . . .

Realized Gain on Investments-Restricted (net) ... ..

Other .
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER ADDITIONS . .. . . .

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS :

Educational and General Expenditures. .. ... . . .. . T

Auxiliary Enterprises Expenditures . . . .. .
Hospital Expenditures. .. . .. .. I T R
Indirect Costs Recovered . 00 i g B .

Grant Refunds and Adjustments . . . . .

Loan Cancellations and Write-offs . |
Administrative and Collection Costs . . .

Expended for Plant Facilties . . i o b
Retirement of Indebtedness . b o TOE L o

Interest on Indebtedness. . - R
Investment in Plant-Deductions .

Other
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER DEDUCTIONS . .

TRANSFERS:

Operating Transfers from Primary Government. . . . . . .
NET INCREASE FOR THE YEAR T B

FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JULY 1 (as restated). .

FUND BALANCE AND OTHER CREDITS, JUNE 30. . . . ..

The notes to the finan

cial statements are an integral part of this statement.

TOTAL
COMPONENT
UNITS

$ 2581733
12,392
400,755
3,350
218,876
22,924
22,622
32,636
4,123
445,540
55536

3,800,487

2,883,470
425,297
726,120

64,082
1271
1,887
1,418

211,407

41,782

38,985

75,799

20,569

4,492,087

1,154,002
462,402

6,687,949

$__ 7,150,351
_—



STATE OF OHIO

COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER CHANGES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 1993

(amounts expressed in thousands)

REVENUES :
Tuition, Fees, and Other Student Charges
Local Appropriations . . . .. S .
Federal Grants and Contracls
Local Grants and Contracts .

Private Gifts, Grants, and Contracts . ... .. .. ... ...

Endowment Incomne .
Sales and Services . o oo o
Temporary Investment Inoome -
Other Sources. . .. .

TOTAL REVENUES .

EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS :
EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL :

Instruction and Departmental Research . . .. .. ... ...

Separately Budgeted Research . . .. ... .. ...

PuincService......................:::::
Academic Support. . .. . .. ... . e e e e e

Student Services . .

Institutional Support.

Operation and Ma/ntenance of Plant

Scholarships and Fellowships . . . . .
TOTAL EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL

AUXILIARYENTERPRISES.....................

HOSPITALS .
TOTAL EX PENDITURE S

MANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET 5

Principal and Interest. . . .. ... .. ... ... ..., ...

Renewals and Replacements .

Student Loan Matching Grants . . .. .. ... .. ... ..

OCther . . .. .
TOTAL MANDATORY THANSFERS NET

TOTAL
COMPONENT
UNITS

$ 1,099,948
42,397
394,180

5073

183,835

33,957
1,244,117
44,431

95,219

3,143,157

1,304,104
299,513
141,881
276,628
151,371
248,505
213,677
261,537

2,897,216

411,833
726,120
4,035,169

69,984
3,880
406
163

74,433

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY TRANSFERS 4,709,602

OTHER TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) :

Operating Transfers from Primary Govemment. . . .. .. .

NONMANDATORY TRANSFERS, NET :
Capital Improvements
OCther .

ADDITIONS/(DE. DUCTIONS)

Excess of Restricted Receipts over Transfers to Revenue .
Indirect Costs Recovered .. ... .. .............
Cther . . .. ..

TOTAL OTHER TRANSFERS AND

ADDITIONS(DEDUCTIONS) . . .. .. ... .. ......

NET INCREASE IN FUND BALANCE. .. .. ... .. ... ...

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

1,151,776

(74,496)
(50,247)

85,489

(64,044)
(5,465)

1,043,013

$ 76,568

3
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1993
NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Ohio present the financial position of the various
fund types and account groups, the results of operations of the various fund types, and the cash flows of
the proprietary funds. The financial statements are presented, as of June 30, 1993, and for the year then
ended, and have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles, which are
primarily set forth in the GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounti Financia ortin
Standards (GASB Codification). The State's significant accounting policies are described below.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State of Ohio's primary government includes all funds, account
groups, elected officials, departments and agencies, bureaus, boards, commissions, and authorities that
make up the State's legal entity. The State's reporting entity also is comprised of its component units,
legally separate organizations for which the State's elected officials are financially accountable.

Financial accountability is defined in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity." The
criteria for determining financial accountability include the following considerations: 1.) appointment of
a voting majority of an organization's governing authority and the ability of the primary government to
either impose its will on that organization or the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, or 2.) an
organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government. Information for obtaining complete
financial statements for the State's component units is available from the Ohio Office of Budget and
Management.

1. Blended Component Units

The following legally separate organizations provide services entirely, or almost entirely to the State or
otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefit the State, and therefore, these organizations'
balances and transactions are reported as though they were part of the State's primary government using
the blending method.

Ohio Building Authority Ohio Public Facilities Commission State Highway Patrol Retirement System

2. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units columns in the combined financial statements include the financial data of the
following organizations. They are reported in a separate discrete column that is labeled as "Component
Units" to emphasize these organizations' separateness from the State's primary government.

State-Assisted Higher Education Institutions

Bowling Green State University Shawnee State University Clark State Community College
Central State University University of Akron Columbus State Community College
Cleveland State University University of Cincinnati Edison State Community College
Kent State University University of Toledo Southern State Community College
Miami University Wright State University Washington State Community College
Ohio State University Youngstown State University Medical College of Ohio at Toledo
Ohio University
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Other Organizations
Ohio Water Development Authority State Parking Commission

3. Joint Ventures/Related Organizations

As discussed in more detail in NOTE 22, the State participates in several joint ventures and has related
organizations. The financial activities of these organizations are not included in the State's financial
statements.

4. Excluded Organizations

The following organizations have been determined not to be part of the reporting entity after applying
the criteria of GASB Statement No. 14:

Public Employees Retirement System

School Employees Retirement System

State Teachers Retirement System

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund

Ohio Public Employees Deferred Compensation Program (OPEDCP)

The retirement systems and OPEDCP are not included in the reporting entity because they are legally
separate, the voting majority of their governing boards are not appointed by the State, they are not
fiscally dependent on the State's primary government, and exclusion from the financial reporting entity
would not render the State of Ohio's financial statements incomplete or misleading.

The retirement systems' assets, which are held in the Treasurer of State's custody, are reported in the
agency funds. OPEDCP assets that represent State employee's participation in the deferred
compensation plan, as described in NOTE 17, are reported in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund.
Other OPEDCP assets temporarily held in the Treasurer of State's custody are reported in the Other
Agency Fund along with the assets of other entities. -

B. Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The State of Ohio uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and results of its
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and aid financial management
by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. An account group is an
accounting entity designed to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not
recorded in the funds because they do not directly affect expendable available financial resources. Funds
reported for the primary govemment and its component units are classified into four categories:
governmental, proprietary, fiduciary, and college and university.
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1. Primary Government

In the primary government's financial statements, each category is divided into separate "fund types,"
which are described along with the two account groups, as follows:

Governmental Fuﬂd Types

General — The General Fund accounts for current financial resources traditionally associated with
government, which are not required legally or by sound financial management practices to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special Revenue — The special revenue funds account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for designated purposes.

Debt_Service — The debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of
general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects — The capital projects funds account for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and for major repairs and replacements other than those financed by proprietary funds
and trust funds.

Proprietary Fund Types

Enterprise — The enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises — where the State's intent is that the cost of providing goods or
services to the gencral public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges; or where the State has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for
accountability purposes. The Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation is included in the enterprise funds
for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1992.

Internal Service — The internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by
a State department or agency to other State agencies and to other government units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity. Trust funds included in the State's
General Purpose Financial Statements are expendable and pension trust. The State Highway Patrol
Retirement System is included as a pension trust fund for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1992.

Agency funds account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private organizations,
other governments, and/or other funds. Assets of the Public Employees Retirement System and the
Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund held by the Treasurer of State are included in the
agency funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1992.
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Account Groups

General Fixed Assets — The General Fixed Assets Account Group accounts for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for use by the State for general governmental purposes. All fixed assets are included except
those accounted for in the proprietary and trust funds.

General Long-Term Obligations — The General Long-Term Obligations Account Group accounts for
the State's unmatured general obligation bonds and other long-term obligations not required to be

accounted for in the proprietary and trust funds.

2. Component Units

Presentation of the underlying fund types of the individual component units reported in the discrete
column is available from each respective component unit's separately issued financial statements. The
Ohio Water Development Authority and the State Parking Commission are included in the component
unit funds for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1992.

A Statement of Current Funds Revenues, Expenditures and Other Changes is presented in the General
Purpose Financial Statements, in accordance with Section 2600.111 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board's Codification ernmental Accounting and Fij i ing. The Current
Funds, a college and university fund type, accounts for economic resources that are expendable for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the higher education institutions.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus.

Governmental and expendable trust funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally
are presented on the balance sheet; increases (i.e., revenue and other financing sources) and decreases
(i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets are presented in these funds' operating
statements.

Proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for using a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these
funds are presented on the balance sheet; fund equity (i.e., net assets) is segregated on the balance sheet
into two components, contributed capital and retained earnings/fund balance. Increases (e.g., revenues)
and decreases (e.g., expenses) in net assets are presented in these funds' operating statements.

The modified accrual basis of accounting has been applied to all governmental, expendable trust, and
agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual, that is, when they become both measurable and available. "Measurable" means
the amount of the transaction can be determined, and "available" means the amount is collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The State
considers revenues as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.
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Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liabilities are incurred. Principal and interest on
general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due.

Significant revenue sources susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting follow:

Personal income taxes

Sales and use taxes

Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Unemployment taxes

Charges for goods and services

Licenses, permits, fees, and certain other miscellaneous revenues are not susceptible to accrual because
generally they are not measurable until received in cash. The "Other" revenue account is comprised of
refunds, reimbursements, recoveries, investment earnings, and other miscellaneous income. In the
capital projects funds, "Other" revenue primarily includes investment earnings.

Deferred revenue, as reported on the State's combined balance sheet, represents resources received
before the State has a legal claim to them, such as the receipt of federal grant monies prior to the
incurrence of qualifying expenditures. When the State has a legal claim to the resources, the revenue is
recognized. '

The accrual basis of accounting has been applied to the proprietary and pension trust funds. Under this
method, revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when incurred.

College and university funds are also accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting, with the
following exceptions: 1.) depreciation expense related to fixed assets is not recorded, and 2.) revenues
and expenditures of an academic term encompassing more than one fiscal year are reported solely in the
fiscal year in which the program is predominantly conducted.

D. Budgetary Process

As required by the Ohio Revised Code, the Governor submits biennial operating and capital budgets to
the General Assembly. The particular budget, which includes those funds of the State subject to
appropriation pursuant to State law, is composed of all proposed expenditures for the State and of
estimated revenues and borrowings for a biennium.

The General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of specific departmental line-item
appropriations, the legal level of budgetary control. Line-item appropriations are established within
funds by program or major object of expenditure. The Governor may veto any item in an appropriation
bill, subject to legislative override.

Biennially, the Ohio General Assembly approves operating and capital appropriations. Operating
appropriations are provided in annual amounts while capital appropriations are provided in two-year
amounts. Because capital projects funds' appropriations are not made on an annual basis, budgetary
basis financial statements for these funds are not presented.
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Transfers of appropriations between years of a biennium and budget revisions during a year, reflecting
program changes or intradepartmental transfers of an administrative nature, may be effected with certain
executive and legislative branch approval. Only the General Assembly, however, may transfer or
authorize the conditions under which appropriations may be transferred between departments.

All governmental funds are budgeted except the following activities within the fund types:

Special Revenue Fund: Debt Service Fund:
Certain activities within the Community Economic Development Bond Service
and Economic Development, Employment Transportation Certificate Retirement
Services, and Student Aid Commission Vietnam Conflict Compensation Bond Retirement
Special Revenue Funds, as discussed Ohio Public Facilities Commission
in NOTE 3 Ohio Building Authority
Salt Fork Bond Retirement
Capital Projects Fund: Enterprise Bond Retirement
Ohio Building Authority Expositions Commission Certificate Retirement
Panhandle Rail Line Project

For budgeted funds, the State's Central Accounting System controls expenditures by appropriation line-
item, so at no time can expenditures exceed appropriations, and financial-related legal compliance is
assured. A modified cash basis of accounting is used for budgetary purposes. Encumbrance accounting,
under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for expenditures are recorded as a
reserve of the applicable appropriations, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in
the State's accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding in the General, special revenue, and capital
projects funds at fiscal year end are reported as reservations of fund balance for expenditure in
subsequent years. Operating encumbrances are generally canceled five months after fiscal year end
while capital encumbrances are automatically reappropriated. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the
end of the biennium, for which they were appropriated. A more comprehensive accounting of activity
on the budgetary basis is provided in the separately published annual Ohio Budgetary Financial Repott,
which is available from the Ohio Office of Budget and Management upon request, and the "Detailed
Appropriation Summary by Fund," which is available for public inspection.

In the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual (Budgetary Basis), budgeted revenues for the General Fund represent periodically updated
revenue budgets. For other budgeted funds, the original budgeted revenues, as submitted by the
Governor, do not represent actual forecasts of revenues and are not amended to coincide with any
legislative changes to the original expenditure budget. Accordingly, budgeted revenues and other
financing sources and uses for budgeted funds other than the General Fund are reported at actual
amounts, since the State does not have updated, budgeted revenue and other financing sources and uses
amounts for use in the accompanying budgetary basis financial statements. In addition, budgetary
expenditures include cash disbursements against fiscal year 1993 appropriations and outstanding
encumbrances, as of June 30, 1993, that were committed during fiscal year 1993. Encumbrance
reversions represent lapses of prior years' appropriations.

None of the State's trust funds are legally required to adopt a budget. For budgeted proprietary funds,
the State is not legally required to report budgetary data and comparisons for such funds. Budgetary
data for discretely presented component units are not presented.
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Because the State budgets on a modified cash basis of accounting, which differs from GAAP, a
reconciliation of the differences between the GAAP-basis and the budgetary-basis of reporting is
presented in NOTE 3.

E. Cash Equity with Treasurer/Cash with Custodian

Cash equity with Treasurer is carried at cost, which approximates market. All cash deposited with the
Treasurer of State to the credit of appropriated funds, including the cash float, consists of pooled
investments primarily composed of demand deposits, and short-term investments. Cash with custodian
is comprised of amounts on deposit with financial institutions. Cash equity with Treasurer, cash on
hand, and cash with custodian, including the portion reported under "Restricted Assets," are considered
to be cash equivalents for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

F. Investments

Investments include long-term investments that may be restricted by law or other legal instruments.
Investments are carried at cost or amortized cost (which does not exceed market) except those of the
Bureau of Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund and Deferred Compensation Agency Fund, which
are reported at market. No investments are considered to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
Statement of Cash Flows. For the colleges and universities, investments received as gifts are reported at
the fair market or appraised value at the acquisition date.

G. Intergovernmental Revenues/Receivables

Intergovernmental revenues primarily represent resources from reimbursement-type grants received
from the federal government. Intergovernmental receivables and revenues are recorded when the related
grant expenditures/expenses are incurred.

H. Inventories

For governmental funds, the costs of material inventories acquired are recorded as expenditures when
purchased. At year end, physical counts are taken of significant inventories for the governmental fund
types and are generally reported on the balance sheet at moving-average cost. Proprietary and college
and university funds' inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market; principal inventory cost
methods applied include first-in, first-out, average cost, moving average, and retail.

I. Restricted Assets

Assets restricted for payment of deferred prize awards (Ohio Lotto) and tuition benefits are reported in
the enterprise funds for the Ohio Lottery Commission and the Ohio Tuition Trust Authority,
respectively.

Assets held by a trustee in connection with the State's certificate of participation financing arrangements
are classified in the internal service funds as restricted assets, since their use is limited by applicable
lease and trust agreements. (See NOTE 14).
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Additionally, covenants for the Ohio Building Authority's bonds require its pledged receipts also be held
and invested in a reserve account placed with a trustee financial institution. These restricted assets are
reported in the internal service funds.

Generally, restricted assets reported for the college and university funds are assets held in trust that are
legally restricted under bond covenants or other financing arrangements.

J. Fixed Assets

General Fixed Assets — General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct
them. Instead, capital acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds,
and the related assets are reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. All purchased fixed
assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at estimated historical cost where no
historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at
acquisition date. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or
materially extend an asset's useful life are not capitalized. The costs of major improvements are
capitalized while interest costs associated with the acquisition of general fixed assets are not capitalized.

Public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of among other assets, roads, bridges,
curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems are not capitalized, since
these assets are immovable and of value only to the government.

Assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated.
Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Fixed Assets — Fixed assets are stated at cost or, for donated assets, at

fair market value at acquisition date. Fixed assets, excluding land, are depreciated on the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-45 years
Machinery and Equipment ~ 5-20 years
State Vehicles 5 years

Material interest is capitalized on proprietary fund fixed assets acquired through the issuance of debt.

College and University Fund Fixed Assets — All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost. Donated
fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at acquisition date. Generally, public domain
(infrastructure) assets are not capitalized. Fixed assets of the colleges and universities are not
depreciated.

K. Sureties

Sureties include various assets placed by their owners in safekeeping with the Treasurer of State, as
required by applicable statutes.
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L. Long-Term Obligations

A long-term obligation is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due. Only that portion
expected to be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a liability of a
governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. Included among these liabilities are the noncurrent portions of liabilities
resulting from debt issuances, certificate of participation financing arrangements, compensated absences,
judgments, settlements, and claims, contingencies, leases, and workers' compensation benefits. Long-
term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund and college and university fund operations
are accounted for in those funds.

As discussed in NOTES 11 and 12, bonds issued by the Ohio Building Authority (OBA) to finance the
construction of State-related projects are reported as special obligation bonds in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group while OBA bonds issued to finance the construction of facilities leased to
local government are reported as revenue bonds in the internal service funds.

M. Compensated Absences

Employees of the State's primary government earn vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at
various rates within limits specified under collective bargaining agreements or under law. Generally,
employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 3.1 hours every two weeks for the first five years of
employment, up to a maximum rate of 7.7 hours every two weeks after 20 years of employment.
Employees may accrue a maximum of three years vacation leave credit. At termination or retirement,
employees are paid at their full rate 100 percent of unused vacation leave, personal leave, and, in certain
cases, compensatory time and 50 percent of unused sick leave.

Such leave is liquidated in cash, under certain restrictions, either annually in December, or at the time of
termination from employment. For governmental funds, the noncurrent portion of the liability for
compensated absences is reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. For
proprietary and college and university funds, the liability for the compensated absences is reported as a
current accrued liability.

For the colleges and universities, vacation and sick leave earnings and liquidation policies vary by
institution.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 43, "Accounting
for Compensated Absences," no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick
pay benefits. However, a liability is recognized for that portion of accumulated sick leave benefits that
is estimated to be taken as "terminal leave" prior to retirement.

N. Reservations/Designations of Fund Equity

Reservations .
Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure/expense or which are
legally restricted to a specific future use.
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Designated fund balances represent tentative plans for future use of financial resources.
O. Self-Insurance

In general, the State's primary government is self-insured for claims covered under its traditional health
care plan, workers' compensation, vehicle liability, public fidelity blanket bonds, property losses, and
tort liability. Estimates for significant incurred but not reported claims are included in accrued liabilities
and in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

P. Interfund/Intra-Entity Transactions
The State of Ohio records the following types of transactions within its reporting entity:

Operating Transfers — Legally required transfers are reported when incurred as "Operating Transfers-
in" by the receiving fund and as "Operating Transfers-out" by the disbursing fund. Legally required
transfers between the primary government and its component units are reported as "Operating Transfers

from/to Primary Government" and "Operating Transfers from/to Component Units."

[ransfers of Expenditures (Reimbursement) — Reimbursements of expenditures made by one fund for
another are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund.

Resi ity T rs — Nonroutine or nonrecurring transfers between funds are reported as
additions to or deductions from fund equity.

Quasi-external Transactions — Charges or collections for services rendered by one fund to another are
recorded as revenues of the receiving fund and expenditures/expenses of the disbursing fund.

A summary of the interfund receivables and payables and interfund and intra-entity operating transfers,
as of June 30, 1993, is presented in NOTE 7.

Q. Reclassifications

Minor reclassifications are made as necessary to comply with current reporting practices.

R. Memorandum Only — Total Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned, "Memorandum Only," to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financial position, results of operations, or cash flows in conformity with GAAP. Neither are such data

comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this
data.
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Certain restatements of fund equity balances, as of June 30, 1992, as discussed below, have been
reflected in the General Purpose Financial Statements.

For the General Fund, fund balance was reduced by $63.1 million to correct an error in the recording of
the intergovernmental payable balance related to local permissive sales tax collections.

For the Special Revenue Fund, the net $43.1 million reduction in fund balance was recorded to reflect a
$5.1 million correction, which increased the loans receivable balance reported in the Community and
Economic Development Special Revenue Fund, and a $48.2 million reduction due to changes in the
reporting entity, as discussed below.

For fiscal year 1993, the State of Ohio has elected to early implement the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity."
Consequently, fund equity balances were restated to reflect the changes in the reporting entity as
summarized below:

o For the Special Revenue Fund, fund balance was reduced by approximately $500 thousand in
the Community and Economic Development Special Revenue Fund and by $22.1 million in the
Ohio Turnpike Commission Special Revenue Fund due to the exclusions of the Ohio Air
Quality Development Authority and Ohio Turnpike Commission, respectively, from the State of
Ohio's reporting entity. Fund balance was also reduced by $25.6 million to reflect the change in
the reporting of the Ohio Water Development Authority from the Community and Economic
Development Special Revenue Fund to a discretely presented component unit proprietary fund.

o For the Debt Service Fund and Capital Projects Fund, fund balances were reduced by $3.4
million and $1.6 million, respectively, to reflect the Ohio Turnpike Commission's exclusion
from the State of Ohio's reporting entity.

» For the Enterprise Fund, retained earnings was reduced by $29.7 million to reflect: 1.) the
change in the reporting of the State Parking Commission from an enterprise fund to a discretely
presented component unit proprietary fund, and 2.) the exclusion of the Petroleum Underground
Storage Tank Release Compensation Board from the State of Ohio's reporting entity.

o For the Internal Service Fund, retained earnings was reduced by $95.3 million, to reflect the
change in the reporting of the Water Pollution Control Loan Fund from an internal service fund
to its inclusion as part of the discretely presented Ohio Water Development Authority
component unit proprietary fund.

e Within the Component Unit Funds, the $474.9 million increase in retained earnings for the
proprietary funds was due to the inclusion of the State Parking Commission, which had been
reported in prior years in the Enterprise Fund, and the Ohio Water Development Authority, the
financial activities of which had been reported, in part, in the Special Revenue and Internal
Service funds in prior years. The $6.7 billion increase in fund balance for the college and
university funds is attributed to the first-time inclusion of these institutions in the State of Ohio's
financial statements.
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Restatements for these funds are summarized in the following table (in thousands).

June 30, 1992

Fund Balance/ July 1, 1992
Retained Earnings Fund Balance/
(Deficits) Increase/ Retained Earnings
as Previously (Decrease) (Deficits)
Reported for Restatement as Restated
Pri Government Fund
General FUNd................cooeeeeneeeeeciiaeireecvesesiseeennes $ 390,323 $ (63,062) $ 327,261
Special Revenue Funds:
Community and Economic Development..................... $ 376,844 $ (20,981) $ 355,863
Ohio Turnpike COMMISSION ........coocrerivrccrnviniinueinnenas 22,119 (22,119) —
Other Special Revenue Funds.... 977,420 — 977,420
V) coomomotoooocnocb iR e i po e e s $1,376,383 $ (43,100) $ 1,333,283
Debt Service Funds:
Ohio Turnpike Commission Bond Service $ 3,413 $ (3413 $ —
Other Debt Service Funds..........ccccceeverenenees 585,771 — 585,771
W] roormomatron tosoa R Pt A $ 589,184 $ (3.413) $ 585,771
Capital Projects Funds:
Ohio Turnpike Commission ..... $ 1,607 $ (1,607) $ —_
Other Capital Projects Funds... 297,339 — 297,339
U] oot P e eSO MO JUrtir ot $ 298,946 $ (1,607) $ 297,339
Enterprise Funds:
State Parking Commission ..........c.oecccevene $ 10497 $ (10,497) $ —
Petroleum Underground Storage Tank 19,241 (19,241) —
Other Enterprise Funds..........ccocconnvvenennne (3,489,406) — (3,489,406)
VL) conoitsctontrnod it O AT O $(3,459,668) $ (29,738) $(3,489,406)
Internal Service Funds:
Water Pollution Control Loan............cccoccveviennencnninens $ 95337 $ (95,337) $ -
Other Internal Service FUNAS.........cccoevevvcvenciiciiienennne 98,849 — 98,849
U oottt ottt r I $ 194,186 $ (95,337) $ 98,849
Compol Fun
Proprietary Funds:
Ohio Water Development Authority $ —_ $ 464,443 $ 464,443
State Parking Commission ................. — 10,497 10,497
Total ..o, occolitrebod o SR AN $ — $ 474,940 $ 474,940
College and University Funds:
Ohio State University.........cccccornerrecicnnmnininncnennns $ —_ $1,976,099 $ 1,976,099
University of Cincinnati..........ccccoovenninnicnneinns - 1,289,840 1,289,840
Ohio University.................. - 410,310 410,310
Miami University........ — 402,355 402,355
University of Akron ..........ccccecvee - 393,393 393,393
Bowling Green State University ............cocecvveecinninnnae — 310,746 310,746
Kent State University........cccccovmnviiinninnninnnnninns — 317,918 317,918
University of Toledo...........cccevvviiininninninininecnnncnnn, - 250,066 250,066
Cleveland State University ...... - 340,530 340,530
Youngstown State University...........ccccevvevriinincnncs - 232,601 232,601
Wright State University........c.ccoceocevenmeecerccnecinincnnns — 258,713 258,713
Central State University....... - 85,699 85,699
Shawnee State University ... — 44,375 44,375
Medical College of Ohio ..........cccceeeninnens — 224,532 224,532
Columbus State Community College.............coeemnenn. — 76,743 76,743
Clark State Community College...........ccococivvnninnnnnnn - 30,751 30,751
Edison State Community College.............c.ccoovvmvnrennns - 16,451 16,451
Southern State Community College.........c.ccooeevenvnenes -— 10,593 10,593
Washington State Community College ........................ — 16,234 16,234

Total ..o e $ —_ $6,687,949 $ 6,687,949
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STATE OF OHIO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30,1993

NOTE 3 GAAP vs. BUDGETARY BASIS (Continued)

Reconciliation of GAAP Basis Fund Balances to Budgetary Basis Fund Balances

June 30, 1993
(in thousands)

Special Debt
General Revenue Service
Total Fund Balances - GAAP BasiS .........ccoeivevnnininnsninnecniernnenionens $ 426,200 $1,288,518 $573,858
Less: Unbudgeted Fund Balances..........ccccococvnniniiiiniininnnnnn == 131,991 * 445,021
Total Budgeted Fund Balances - GAAP Basis..........coccenierinnnnnnnnees 426,200 1,156,527 128,837
Less: Reserved Fund BalanCes.......ccoccveiemniirenicenennnncncnccnns 226,939 1,652,632 128,837
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances - GAAP Basis................. 199,261 (496,105) —
BASIS DIFFERENCES
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Taxes RECEIVADIE ..........coceeirremniiciiniieniiesrer s seseeeeresaessenee (712,645) (204,740) —
Intergovernmental Receivable ... (346,897) (196,822) —
Loans RECEIVADIE ........ccoouriireireneirteinniticiretieeesrnressssnensnneesss (104) (49,656) —
Other Receivables...........ccovverevrineieniennineesineresnes e (6,222) (12,276) —
Due from Other FUNAS .........ccccivveecininniniiniinnenesienesssnssessenans (5,670) (15,522) —
Deferred REVENUES..........coveeerereressieieniiiieeirsnsssrinssssessesensssesss 868 21,648 —
SUDLOAL.....cvereeereeiiierrerreerreeresssesseessessssssssssnssesnesssssessnassnas (1,070,670) (457,368) —
Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable ... 64,081 149,442 —
Medicaid Claims Payable..........cccoviineniininiiii, 505,691 — -
Accrued Liabiliies ........ccoverevievneinnieniiieni e 63,071 41,063 —_
Intergovernmental Payable ...........ccovveeenmnniiiiinien 154,212 291,033 -
Due t0 Other FUNAS.........cocvecieeminrenieienisieiicenrmssesniensesscssnes 27,912 9,392 -
Refund and Other Liabilities...........ccvevvniininnnniininninncnennennes 360,370 90,613 —
SUBLORAL.......coeeeeeiinrereeee e eresteer ettt e et 1,175,337 581,543 —_
Other Adjustments:
Fund Balance Reclassifications:
From Unreserved (Budgetary Basis) to Reserved for:
DeEbt SEIVICE .....ovveeerrireeeree it resiasere e —_ — 127,139
Minority Contractors' Bonding Program................c.... —_ 2,654 -
Loan Commitments.......cccccerecrceicrniniveninrnnnineenensene — 3,091 —
Cash and Investments Held OQutside of State Treasury ............. (2,679) (14,401) —
O .o eeeeestss e e tresressesss e sessbssssesne st e s n et e saasp e snasnentssaesnis - (1) -
SUDBLOLAL.....ccveivieiri e reerreereesrcsessrsare s sr s e sn e eanas (2,679) (8,657) 127,139
Total Basis DIffErences ........vcvvvireeneinisreeiisiineinnnsnssesesinsressisseene 101,988 115,518 127,139
TIMING DIFFERENCES
ENCUMDIANCES .c.vveeeveeesreroreererseseessesssssssoneossssssasssnrensasnssessnnssesonns (118,458) (148,368) —
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances (Deficits) —
BUdgetarny BasiS .........c.c.oerriirrinamsmnnee i $ 182,791 $ (528,955) $127,139

*This amount includes certain unbudgeted activities within the

Services, and Student Aid Commi

ssion Special Revenue Funds.

Community and Economic Development, Employment
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A. Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer of State and the State Board of Deposit are
governed by the Uniform Depository Act, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, which requires that monies
held by the State be maintained in one of the following three classifications:

Active Deposits — Those monies required to be kept in a cash or near-cash status to meet current
demands. Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the State's treasury or in any of the
following:

A commercial account that is payable or withdrawable, in whole or in part, on demand;
A negotiable order of withdrawal account;

A money market deposit account; or

A designated warrant clearance account.

Inactive Deposits — Those monies not required for use within the current two-year period of
designation of depositories. Inactive monies may be deposited or invested only in certificates of deposit
maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories.

Interim Deposits — Those monies not required for immediate use, but needed before the end of the
current period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits may be deposited or invested in the
following instruments:

* Bonds, notes, or other obligations of or guaranteed by the United States, or those for which the
faith of the United States is pledged for the payment of principal and interest;

» Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government
agency, or the Export-Import Bank of Washington;

* Repurchase agreements in the securities enumerated above;

* Interim deposits in the eligible institutions applying for interim monies;
e Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

*  The Treasurer of State's investment pool;

* Linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions that provide reduced-rate loans to
small businesses, as authorized under Section 135.63, Ohio Revised Code;

» Agricultural linked deposits, reduced-rate deposits at financial institutions placed on or before
June 30, 1987, that provide reduced-rate loans to farmers, as authorized under Section 135.74,
Ohio Revised Code;
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o Reverse repurchase agreements with any eligible financial institution that is a member of the
federal reserve system or federal home loan bank, or any recognized U.S. government securities
dealer;

o Securities lending agreements with any eligible financial institution that is a member of the
federal reserve system or federal home loan bank, or any recognized U.S. government securities
dealer;

o Commercial paper maturing in 180 days or less, rated in one of the two highest rating categories
by two nationally recognized rating agencies, and not exceeding five percent of the investment
portfolio; and

» Bankers' acceptances maturing in 270 days or less and not exceeding 10 percent of the
investment portfolio.

The primary government's deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the State Board of
Deposit and must be fully collateralized.

In some cases, deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds and component units are
established by Ohio Revised Code provisions other than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust
agreements. In accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Highway Patrol Pension Trust
Fund, the Workers' Compensation Enterprise Fund, the Retirement Systems Agency Fund, and the State-
assisted universities may also invest in common and preferred stocks, domestic and foreign
corporate/government bonds and notes, mortgage loans, limited partnerships, real estate, and/or other
investments. Short-term securities, which are reported for the retirement systems, principally consist of
U.S. government obligations and commercial paper.

B. Deposits
1. Primary Government

As of June 30, 1993 (or December 31, 1992, for those entities/funds identified in NOTE 1) the carrying
amount of deposits was (in thousands) $346,061, and the bank balance was $380,394. Of the bank
balance, $22,882 was fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the primary government or
its agent in the primary government's name, $345,455 was collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution's trust department or its agent in the primary government's name, and
$12,057, although meeting legal collateralization requirements, was categorized as uninsured and
uncollateralized.

2. Component Units

As of June 30, 1993 (or December 31, 1992, for those component units identified in NOTE 1) the
carrying amount of deposits was (in thousands) $294,594, and the bank balance was $309,327. Of the
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bank balance, $119,267 was fully insured or collateralized with securities held by the respective
component units or their agents in the component unit's name, $50,641 was collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or its agent in the respective component
unit's name, and $139,419, although meeting legal collateralization requirements, was categorized as
uninsured and uncollateralized.

C. Investments

The State categorizes investments to give an indication of the level of credit risk associated with the
State's custodial arrangements at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered,
or held by the State or its agent in the State
investments held by the counterparty's trust department or its agent in the State's name. Category 3
includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the counterparty, its trust department, or its
agent, but not in the State's name.

Certain investments have not been categorized because the securities are not used as evidence of the
investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership in real estate, mutual funds, securities
under the securities lending program, and the deposits with the federal government and the deferred
compensation plan.

The following summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed by the primary government and its
component units and the total carrying amount and market value of investments, as of June 30, 1993 (or
December 31, 1992, for those entities/funds/component units identified in NOTE 1) (in thousands):

Primary Government

Carrying Amount Market
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total Value
U.S. government and
agency obligations......................... $28,388,440 $4,079,480 $1,420,428 $33,888,348 $35,208,843
Municipal obligations..................... . 1,895 — — 1,895 2,180
Common and preferred stock.............. 15,139,488 2,091,463 - 17,230,951 20,117,248
Corporate bonds and notes............ .. 4,333,080 2,339,581 -_ 6,672,661 6,841,720
Repurchase agreements .................. 52,887 —_ 2,787 55,674 55,674
Commercial paper.................c......... 691,117 1,164,223 2,772 1,858,112 1,858,104
Bankers' acceptances.................... 80,021 —_ —_ 80,021 80,021
Canadian bonds............................. 836,088 - —_ 836,088 879,287
Short-term securities ....................._. 4,671,223 — —_ 4,671,223 4,686,341
Other investments ... 2,000 —_ - 2,000 2,000
Total...ccoovvmerenn $54,196,239 $9,674,747 $1,425,987 65,296,973 69,731,418
Realestate................ooooooovo 3,670,355 3,354,179
Mutual funds.......................o . 27,364 27,400
Limited partnerships.................... 84,572 89,687
Mortgage loans ............................ 607,668 656,577
Securities on loan contracts .......... .. 5,513,070 5,622,679
Deposit with federal
government ...................oocoenvien 779,593 779,593
Deposit with deferred
compensation plan ...................... 442,827 442,827
Total......ocoovevee $76,422,422 $80,704,360
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The Treasurer of State and the retirement systems participate in securities lending programs for
securities included in the "Cash Equity with Treasurer" account, the STAROhio program, and the
retirement systems' assets. Each lending program is administered by a custodial agent bank, whereby
certain securities are transferred to an independent broker/dealer (borrower) in exchange for collateral
equal to no less than 102 percent of the market value of the lent securities. The Treasurer and the
retirement systems have minimized their exposure to credit risk due to borrower default by requiring the
custodial agent bank to determine daily that collateral requirements are met. During fiscal year 1993,
the Treasurer and the retirement systems had not experienced any losses due to credit or market risk on
securities lending activity. Securities under loan are not required to be categorized according to their

level of credit risk.

JUNE 30, 1993

Component Units
Carrying Amount Market
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total Value
U.S. government and
agency obligations..............c..c........ $450,586 $566,260 $ 81,653 $1,098,499 $1,129,406
Municipal obligations.......................... 737 - - 737 732
Common and preferred stock.............. i 98,095 230,922 18,661 347,678 466,799
Corporate bonds and notes....... 107,593 15,394 30,816 153,803 158,783
Repurchase agreements ........... - 5,419 167,351 172,770 172,770
Commercial paper.............co.on.. — 1,300 16,111 17,411 17,411
Canadianbonds............cccccoeeeeueeennnne 9,231 _— — 9,231 9,569
Other investments..........c.c.ccceveevennn 24,141 10,146 3,483 37,770 41,113
Total e ... . $690,383 $829,441 $318,075 1,837,899 1,996,583
Real estate...........ccccevvvnvnvievecvrnnnnes 19,196 39,319
Mutual funds..........cooceeviiiciiiniiceees 103,897 111,758
Limited partnerships..........c.ccceruvevienne 2,120 2,120
Mortgage loans ............cocoeeveeeecneenenne. 10,336 11,363
Deposit with deferred
compensation plan............cc.couc..... 832 832
Investment in Treasurer of State
Investment Pool (STAROAhiI0).......... 194,313 194,313
T Ot T $2,168,593 $2,356,288

The total carrying amount of deposits and investments, as of June 30, 1993, reported for the primary
The total carrying amount of deposits and

government and its component units is $78.9 billion.

investments categorized and/or disclosed in this note is $79.2 billion. A reconciliation of the difference

follows (in thousands):

Cash equity with Treasurer (unrestricted and restricted)...................
Cash with custodian (unrestricted and restricted)...................cun......
Investments...........ccccooeerrevevencrceer e

Deposit with federal government..............
Deposit with deferred compensation pla
Restricted Assets:

Carrying amount per combined balance sheet ...................ccucuueene..
Outstanding warrants and other open tems............ccccoevvveveieieinnnn.
Total Reporting Entity ..o

Deposits Investments Total
$ 72,952 $ 2,349,449 $ 2,422,401
379,143 50,184 429,327
4,854 73,140,434 73,145,288
- 779,593 779,593
- 443,659 443,659
- 469,774 469,774
- 1,195,286 1,195,286
456,949 78,428,379 78,885,328
183,706 162,636 346,342
$640,655 $78,591,015 $79,231,670

49



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 1993
NOTE 5 TAXES

Taxes receivable, as of June 30, 1993, consisted of the following (in thousands):

Special Trust and
General Revenue Agency Total
INCOME TAXES......cocccvrirerririerineecrirereeer et et se e s e s s eeen $333,942 $ 39,592 $ — $ 373,534
Sales Taxes 373,342 19,603 - 392,945
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes — 132,097 — 132,097
Unemployment Taxes - —_ 216,399 216,399
Other Taxes ..........ccevevverennas 5,361 13,448 — 18,809
$712,645 $204,740 $216,399 $1,133,784

As of June 30, 1993, refund liabilities related to income and corporation franchise taxes, totaling $395
million, were reported as "Refunds and Other Liabilities,” of which $358 million was recorded in the
General Fund and $37 million was recorded in the Special Revenue Fund.

NOTE 6 LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
A. Loans Receivable
Loans receivable (net of uncollectible amounts) for the primary government and its component units, as

of June 30, 1993 (or December 31, 1992 for the Ohio Water Development Authority), consisted of the

following (in thousands):
Primary Government

Special Capital Trust and
General Revenue Projects Agency Total

Community and Economic Development:
Economic Development........................... $ — $135,200 $ - $ - $135,200
Minority Business Development .............. - 11,486 - - 11,486
Ohio Housing Finance Agency ................ - 33,836 - — 33,836
Ohio Farm Loans..............ooeueveennenen. i - 35 — - 35
Subtotal .........ccooveen. - 180,557 - — 180,557

Education:
Bankruptcy and Port Authority................ —_ 1,615 - - 1,615
Public School Building........................... - 63,649 - - 63,649
Vocational School Assistance................ - 7,138 - —_— 7,138
Vocational Education........................ 1,723 486 - —_ 2,209
Subtotal ....................... 1,723 72,888 — — 74,611
Student Loans........ccccoveverineriereinen, it - 43,257 - - 43,257
Natural Resources....................... 0 1 - 147 - — 147
Local Infrastructure Improvements .............. — — 19,319 — 19,319
Unclaimed Funds ..........c..ccocovviveviinncnne. - — - 35,190 35,190
LI | $1,723 $296,849 $19,319 $35,190 $353,081
Component Units
Ohio Water University Other
Development Ohio State of Component
Authority University Cincinnati Units Total

Sewage Treatment Facilities ...................... $ 903,280 $ - $ - $ - $ 903,280
Water Pollution Control...............couevioennnn. 123,596 — — - 123,596
Student and Other Loans ..............c............ - 45,382 26,234 76,386 148,002

Total s $1,026,876 $45,382 $26,234 $76,386 $1,174,878
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B. Other Receivables

Other receivables for the primary government and its component units, as of June 30, 1993 (or
December 31, 1992 for those entities/funds identified in NOTE 1), consisted of the following (in

thousands):
Primary Government
Trust
Special Debt Capital Internal and
Unrestricted: General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise Service Agency Total
Accounts Receivable.................... $1,231 $ 2,220 $ - $ — $147601 $ 1,626 $ —  $152,678
Interest Receivable....................... 4,991 7,309 9,228 1,109 165 76 2,583 25,461
Women, !nfants and Children
Program Rebate Receivable...... — 6,901 —_— - _ _ _ 6,901
Leases Receivable...........c........... — — _ — — 49,099 — 49,099
Receivables from
Lottery Sales Agents.................. —_ —_ — —_ 20,915 — —_ 20,915
Claims and
Settlements Receivable............. —_ —_ - — _ _ 26,041 26,041
Unemployment Surcharges
Receivable ..........ccccoveeririnnnnnns —_ 7 — —_ —_ _ _— 7
Miscellaneous Receivables .......... _ 1,921 — - 3 2,422 261 4,607
Tota! Unrestricted......... $6,222 $18,358 $9,228 $1,109 $168,684  $53,223 $28,885 $285,709
Restricted: Enterprise
Accounts Receivable.................... $ 1,392
Interest Receivable....................... 9,234
Tota! Restricted ............ $10,626
Component Units
Medical
Ohio University Bowling College Other
State of Green State of Component
Unrestricted: University  Cincinnati University Ohio Units Total
Accounts Receivable............ L e . . .1 = $89,412 $71,106 $ 837 §$17,489 $37,824 $216,668
Interest Receivable...........cccccenvriivimnnnniennn. - . | S 4,340 5,760 12,290 564 3,083 26,037
Miscellaneous Receivables ..... _ 242 6,049 — 10,413 16,704
Total Unrestricted $93,752 $77,108 $19,176  $18,053 $51,320 $259,409

The Ohio Building Authority has entered into long-term lease agreements for office space under direct
financing leases with local governments, which are charged a pro-rata share of the buildings' debt
service and operating costs based on square footage occupied. A schedule of future lease amounts due
the Ohio Building Authority Internal Service Fund, net of executory costs, is as follows (in thousands):

Lease
Year Ending June 30, Amounts Due
TOO0G ..o eeeeeeeeeeeeeetettieste s b vessse st e s nbabaaaee s rme e s sRa e SRR Ao e Ee e e e $ 8,879
1005 ....eeerieeeneistieseeesssotireseosessasnesbavaiesadssiastins soatbssssssanesntesarssonsisaessabetehrtsas 6,222
1O96....... issicsisiveisnes e e i reenas isbiEHE SRR T For smenane s S — s 6,223
1= 1 2O TSP PRI PRSP 6,218
D008 ..o cueveseeeseesrnreseeesnesssesnsenstesraraaesreeshraesnaesn s bs s e tAE SR e a b e e n e r e s bed s e R e s ns 6,220
BT 0= Ui (= RO OO OO SPOPPE PRSP 59,143
Total MiNIMUM aMOUNES QUE......c..eiurieerirereenreeericia i e st e esesse s et 92,905
Less: Amount representing interest............o.oooovoiiiiiini 43,806
Present value of minimum lease amounts due............cccoociievrninicenienn e — $49,099
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Interfund receivables and payables, as of June 30, 1993, and operating transfers among the primary
government's funds, for the year ended June 30, 1993, are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Due from Due to Operating Operating
Fund Type/Fund Other Funds Other Funds Transfers-in Transfers-out
General $§ 5670 $ 27,912 $ 89228 $ 554,393
Special Revenue:
Community and Economic Development................... 2,108 596 32,517 34,365
EdUCtioN ........covveniiececeec e 590 1,242 658,662 80
Highway Safety .............cooovvvrveiveirereereererreeeessreson 1,271 2,256 122,592 837
Highway Operating...............cocueervmivrirmveeveeeereesnnann 2,376 1,227 522,571 130,541
Revenue Distribution ..............c..ccocovviiirieeerienn, 8,881 91 587 586,066
Local Transportation !mprovements .......................... 128 164 53,724 —_—
Other Special Revenue Funds...............c..ccceouvunnn..... 191 4,151 9,470 12,272
Subtotal... ..o 15,545 9,727 1,400,123 764,161
Debt Service:
Economic Development Bond Service....................... — - 18,133 —_
Development Bond Retirement....................ccocoee...e.. - — 18,913 38
Loca! Infrastructure Improvements Bond Retirement. _ — 33,404 —
Ohio Public Facilities Commission —_ - 355,070 —
Ohio Building Authority .......................... —_ — 124,908 7,182
Enterprise Bond Retirement ............c.cccccocooveeunnnenn, — - 20,088 23,662
Other Debt Service FUnds.................ccocovveeuemeeennnnnn. 436 —_ 15,915 281
Subtotal........cccociririeiee e 436 - 586,431 31,163
Capital Projects:
Ohio Building AUthOTIty .........c.cceerveririreeeiireeenee. — — 5,197 225,954
Administrative Services Building improvements......... 54 9 58,565 —
Youth Services Building Improvements ..................... 33 58 42,263 —
Transportation Building Improvements ...................... 17 —_ 16,833 —_
Adult Correctional Building improvements.................. 89 301 98,381 —
Other Capital Praojects Funds................cccoeveeverennen. 1,563 1,962 9,912 642
SUBLOtal ... 1,746 2,330 231,151 226,596
Enterprise:
Liquor Control..........c.ceeeeiveineeeeereerereeeeeeeeeenenenas 7 40 —_ 76,646
Ohio Lottery Commission ............cccccceevveireveeernennannn. 97 1,536 —_— 658,408
Other Enterprise Funds................ccccvvvveeiniiecaennnnenen. —_— 8 —_— —_—
Subtotal.........ccocovne e 104 1,584 —_— 735,054
Internal Service:
Ohio Building AUthOIItY .......c.ccveveeeerceiiicececereenn. — — 28,241 30,128
Ohio Penal Industries................ 17,852 979 6,794 —_
Other Interna! Service Funds.... 18,111 165 —_ 225
Subtotal ... 35,963 1,144 35,035 30,353
Pension Trust: 1,372 —_— —_— —_
Agency: 1,771 29,000 — —_
Subtotal-Trust and Agency .............cccccveerveueeennen, 3,143 29,000 — —_
Tota! per Financia! Statements--Primary Government ... 62,607 71,697 2,341,968 2,341,720
Reconciliation for Timing Differences for Funds
with December 31, 1992 Year-Ends......ccc...cooeveenn.. 9,926 836 —_ 248
Reconciled Tota! for Primary Govemment.................... 72,533 72,533 $2,341,968 $2,341,968
Component Units:
Ohio State University...........ccoceevvevieriiiriceerenene, 283,453 283,453
University of Cincinnati.............ccccovievviecuieccneene. 81,038 81,038
Other Component Unit Funds..............cccocovvvrvevennnnnn, 29,035 29,035
Total per Financial Statements--Component Units ........ 393,526 393,526

Total Reporting Entity .............c...ccovvevvevreennnn.n. $466,059 $466,059
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Operating transfers between the primary government and its component units, for the year ended June

30, 1993, are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government:
General Fund...............

Component Units:
Ohio State University ..
University of Cincinnati

.............................

............................

Operating
Transfers
from Primary
Government

Operating
Transfers
to Component
Units

Ohio University
Miami University

University of Akron...........cccoceceerenrecrnnnne.
Bowling Green State University ...............

Kent State University
University of Toledo

.................................

Cleveland State University

Wright State University

.............................

Other Component Units .............c.oueuu.....

NOTE 8 FIXED ASSETS

A. Primary Government

$ 319,174
145,522
96,585
5